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1. JARUZELSKI'S ATTITUDE, BEHAVICR AND STYLE

1) What were the time periods when the Source knew or ﬁad exposure
to JARUZELSKI? ‘_

My appraisal and opinions about JARUZELSKI are based on personal
observations of his attitudes, behavior and style for a period of over 25
years. These cover a variety of times of his spectacular career, starting at
the point when he became a divisional cammander, and moving through a series
of eras in which he held higher and higher military positions such as: the
Chief of Main Political Directorate (Glowﬁy Zarzad Polityczny), Chief of the
General Staff of the Polish Ammed Forces, and Minister of National Defensg.

It also covers the time when he achieved the highest levels of national power
as the Prime Minister of the Government of PPR, and the First Secretary' of the
Central Cammittee of the PUWP. Lastly,_ it includes the time of thé forrulation
of the final plans for the total takeover of the political and military power
via creation of the Military Council of National Salvation (WRON), and
introduction of the martial law, during the period of the social erisis in the
Peoples' Republic of Poland, |

I first encountered the nsme JARUZELSKI in the early fifties, at the
moment which one could consider, in a certain sense, a kind of dramatic
beginning of his subsequent spectacular career. |

In the summer of 1951, when I took my entry exam to the Higher School
for lInfantry in REMBERTON (WSP or Wyzsza Szkola Pie‘chbty), I heard a rare |
story about a certain previous year(1950/51) graduate of this institution, by-
the then still unknown name of ’JAKJZ'ELSKI, who in the period of only several

days was pramted to Lieutenant Colonel and then to Colonel,
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Briefly, this was the situation: Mejor JARUZELSKI, who had finished
a year-long course for regimental commanders, very nﬁch like his |
contarporaries attending the WSP, received a routine pramti‘on to Lieutenant
Colonel. The festive graduation ceremonies were attended by the then |
Coamander of the Land Forces, the Vice-Minister of» National Defense,

Lt .General S. POPLAWSKI (e Soviet General in Polish uniform). During the
banquet, the general inquired about the outstanding graduates. When the
school's cormandant (also a Soviet general in Polish uniform) Brig.Gen. STECA
introduced to him JARUZELSKI, at that time already a Lt.Col,, and the top' |
graduate, POPLAWSKI, supposediy samewhat high fram drinking, congratulated
JARIJZEISKI, and assured him that he will be pramoted to Colonel. A few days
later, there appeared the orderv'of the then Minister of National Defense,
Marshal of Poland and USSR, ROKOSSOVSKIY, pramoting JARUZELSKI fo Colonel.

It is difficult to say whether this accelerated promotion was
accidental, as it was told at the time, or rather a result of specific
preference which already then was being lavished upon JARUZELSKI by the Sow)ie't
leadership of the Ministry of National Defense of the Polish Peoples'
Republic. , :
© JARUZELSKI, as the faculty claimed, distinguished himself in all

subjects and his first recognition was fully deserved. Without denigrating

any basis for this particular‘ singling out of JARUZELSKI, one ought not ignore
the fact, in properly evaluating this occurence, that the period of time in
which this took place was one of the most gloamy in the postwar history of the -
Polish Peoples' Army. It was an era of a ruthless russification of the armmed
forces of the Polish Peoples' Republic. It was the time of fabricated

political trials which not infrequently ended in déath sentences, and removal
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of the cadre of the prewar cammanders and politically uncertain personalities
on the one hand, and accelerated advanceinnt and pushing ghead for responsible
position of the hard-headed marxist-leninist doctrinaires and, before all,
proven friends of the USSR, on the other hand.

I never heard whether JARUZELSKI at that time personally parficip_ated,
as was then in current fashion, in the canpaign against real or imeginary
opponents of the system., BHe supposedly, was, however, very active and
involved politically and this attracted the at.tention not only of his
contemporaries but also of the Soviet supervisors who were deciding about.
everything that happened in the Polish Armed Forces.

I was able to meet JARUZELSKI personally only a few years later. In
the autumn of 1957 JARUZELSKI was appointed aé the Commander of the Twelfth
Mechanized Divis'ion in SZCZECIN, end I, as the Camanding officer of the First
Battalion in the Fifth Mechanized Regiment which fell under his cameand, in
the very seme city. Our acquaintanship did not, at that time, exceed routine
duty encounters betv)veen & divisional and battallion cammenders. It was not
JARUZELSKI's habit to cammand particular battalions "over the heads" of
regimental camanders. However, because of the pbor condition of that division
(which received a failing grade during an inspection, and its former
commander, Col. MAJTEK was removed for cause fram his cammand), JARUZELSKI was
a frequent visitor in the regiment, and in the barracks, as well as in the
drill area. He also had frequent formal briefings with the participation of

batl'tallion camanders and had undertaken a variety of steps leading to the

achievement by his division (which he did not hide) of the first place within
the Polish Armed Forces. |

In this time, which, {nter alia, lasted not quite a year - I was
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transferred at my own request (for personnal reaéons), to fhe 28th Mechanized
Reghnent of the Eighth Mechanized Division in KOLOBRZEG), I had relatively
frequent, though certainly only superficial opportunity to observe, and to
form an opinion about JARUZELSKI as my divisional camander. Cavmon duty in
the same division, however, had no influence on our subsequent, much closer
association.

In 1858 our roads parted. At the time mén he cohtinued to carmand
the Twelfth Mechanized Division and I served in the Eight Mechanized Division,
our contacts were sporadic and limited to accidental encounters during
military maneuvers, official briefings and Party Conferences in the Pameranian
Military District. |

At the time when JARUZELSKI was the Chief of the Main Political
Directorate of the Polish Armed Forces, ny contacts with him were even‘ more
infrequent. Therefore, my opinions about him during that period of time are
largely based on the observation and appraisal of the actlvlties.of the Main
Political Directorate which JARUZELSKI headed, as well as on the étatements
and opinions of the peéple who were his direct subordinates, and who later
belonged to the circle of my colleagues and co-workers, who shared with me
their various views about him.

My direct working relationship with JARUZELSKI had actually began in
1965, after his takeover of the position of the Chief of General Sfaff of thé
Polish Ammed Forces in which I w&s then already working. Physically, I was
relatively close to him since my workroam was located ih the same corridor as
" the offices of JARUZELSKI, separated from me by only four other offices.

My personal contacts with JARUZELSKI, hmvér, were in the beginning

limited to the affairs concerning training of the armed foﬁ:_es, including
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especially plans for large miliitary exercises at the lével of front, and of
various branches of the armed forces, in the preparation of which I took an
active part as a co-author, and subsequently, thve author. It was at that time
that I began writing for him a variety of staff studies, including draftsldf
exercise critiques, insérts to his présentations before the directing cadre of
the armed forces (Kierownieza Kadre Sil Zbrojnych), plans. of Ministry of
National Defense, directives for tralriing of the armed for_ces, snd other
material, as I was directed.

At the mument when JARUZELSKI became the Minister of National Defense
my éncounters with him were not only unrestt;icted but _indeed begén to
encanpass wider and wider areas of problems. In the early seventies I was
even asked to take over, in his office, the post of the Senior officer for
Special Activities of the ministry of National Defense with the possibility of
pramotion to the position of the Chief of Staff of the office of the Ministry
of National Defense. Because I disliked writing Staff studies for his
presentation (which was supposed to have been my main responsibility), I
declined despite the repetition of the offer.

Being pramoted in turn, in the General Staff of the Polish Ammed
Forces, 1 reached a position which enabled me to learn to know this man much
better from many sided aspects, than would have been possible had I only held
the function of an officer for Special Aetivities. An attendant eircumstance,
which favored this situation was the fact that in the opinion of the
leadership in the General Staff of Polish Ammed Forces, the Staff studies
prepared by me personally were, if not altogether applauded by JARUZELSKI, at
least received from him a positive appraisal, which was not easy.

In this manner, not considering ny formal responsibilities which
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resulted franmy official position, I was receiving a great quantities of
materials and documents which were being submitted by the General Staff to
JARUZELSKI. In the finishing touches of certain inmportant documents I
actually worked under the direect supervision of JARUZFLSKI, bypassing my
direct supervisors,

In the spring of 1977, i was appointed as the Chief of Department I of
the Strategic Defense Planning, Directorate I of the General Staff of the
Polish Anﬁed Forces. In connection with this, my responsibilies encompassed
participation in operational (war) planning, and the total military
cooperation of the Polish Peoples' Republic with the allies of the Warsaw
Pact. Fran that mament on, actually on the basis of exclusivity, I not only
prepared all rel_evant materials and documents but also accompanied JARUZELSKI,
as a marber of the delegations of the Polish Armed Forces, to all meetings of
the uﬂlitéry organs of the Warsaw Pact, and also to all bilateral negotiations
and discussions with the military leadership of the USSR. |

In the summer of 1880, in connection with the social crisis in
Poland, only I, in addition to the Fifst Secretary of the Central Committee of
the POWP, certain members of the Politbureau, and the narrow leadership of the
Ministry of National Defense, participated in the fornulafion of the plans to
introduce the mertial law in Poland. In addition to this, I also participated
in the preparations of the briefing and informetion on that subject for the
Soviet leadership. As these plans erystalized, sametime fram the spring 1981,
until my departure fram Poland, I was the chief of the Team which planned the .
martial law in Poland, It was this position which provided me with‘an
opportunity to appraise the attitude of JARUZISKI regarding the issue

ofmethods for the resolution of the erisis in Poland.
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2. How well did you know JARUZELSKI? How frequént were your contacts?

J_AKJZELSKI, while unusually eloguent, was a very withdrawn person who
shut himself off from other people. He never acted spontaneously and all his
important pronouncements were, as a rule, camposed, and though.t through in
advance, in the solitude of his study. At times, they were even rehearsed
using a recorder, before they were officially pronounced. Of course, he did
not avoid "live" statements, camments, thoughtful remarks and d.iscusslons but
always, and in every situation, he never lost control over the i‘eal content of
his pronouncements. | _

Could I then, in this instance say that I know the man sufficiently
well? 1 belleve'l can, lt‘ seems to me that .I not only know his demeanor,
behavior, style and method of work but also, to a large extend, the attitudes
and motives which guided his conduct. '

I kept encountering him, I listened to his statements, and I
continued to observe his behavior in a variety of situations and settings on
more that several hundreds of occassions. ! spoke with him directly or
briefed him about various problems urpteen times. A dozen or so times I
accarpanied him to difficult talks and negotiations with the military leaders
of the USSR and the Warsaw Pact. _ ‘

Though, my direct contacts with JARUZELSKI gave me a wide field of
observation, it is of no.‘le‘ss importance that for ‘about 5-7 Years I worked in.
the "kitchen". which "brewed", as JARUZELSKI himsel.f was fdnd to say, his most
important decisions. In the last .period of the time | even became the only

"ehef" who preparedthe most difficult and the most sensitive decisions. For _

— that reason, I had a nearly daily working contact with SIWICKI, who was the

chief of the "kitchen", and the only confidant of JARUZELSKI, as well as with
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all the personnel of the Polish "white House" with Gen. JANISZEWSKI (Maj.Gen.
Michal) at its head. | '

SIWICKI was a.rmch more open man who occassionally shared with me his
feelings about reactions of JARUZELSKI. JANISZEWSKI too, behaved in a similar
fashion. In addition, participating direetly in the decision processes, I had
the opportunity to becane acquainted with not only the final official
positions of JARUZELSKI but also to watch the paths which he followed to
arrive at these positions. A

1, therefore, feel that all this entitles me to make judgments which
could,to a certain degree, provide a more objective appraisal of this
controversial, and in the eyes of many politicians, still not carpletely
defined personality. . |

3. Did you like or dislike JARUZELSKI?

I worked in an enviromment in which, with the egception of Very few
who were loyal to him, people, behaved toward him in a negative fashion,
disliked him or even held him in contempt, for a variety of reasons and views.

For fundamental political reasons, I never belonged to the circle‘of
his followers. 1 cannot state, however, that 1 did not respect him as a man,
or that I did not like him. JARUZELSKI was a towering personality, who
clearly stood out from his hopelessly primitive enviromment. OQertain of his
personal qualities indeed inpiessed me, especially in the moral and ethical
sphere, in which there was a consistence between his words and deeds. Also
impressive were his exceptional Attention to work coupled with an unusual

intellectual receptivity (a continual hunger for knowledge), a rarely

— encountered analytical and synthetical ability, originality of thought, a high

degree of culture in his language, both oral and written, as well as the
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highest demands which he placed upon himself and those in his ir:"mediate
entourage. |

Valuing these positive attributes, I became sirmltanedusly aware of
meny negative features, among these, in the forefront, was a weakness of his
character bordering on cowardice, and an artificial, pampous wﬁy of life.

While his behavior never perturbed me, I never had any sympathy for him,

4, How did JARUZELSK] delegate his authorit&?'

JARUZELSKI has an {nborn instinct for discipline and obedience
"carbined within an instilled worship for power. Having a nearly maniacal
respect for power, he never sought it through the "back door" via
participation in'political plays or "elbowing" himself forward. On the
contrary, he was often reluctant to accept higher and higher government posts
which were 6£Iered to him because of waves of changing development. One could
not say, on the other hand that he shied away from power. Gradually, it
became not only his all absorbing passion but also his first and only love.
The cult of power and the ecstasy which he experienced in exercising it
resulted in the situation in wh;? once having achieved poWer he never
shared it with anyone else. |

He divided responsibility very precisely. He even reached a certain
level of mastery in the exploitation of the typical forms of t_hé "demoeratic

socialism" ,"collectivism" and all kinds of "consultations" for the absolute

control of his sphere of power without revealing his own views.
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Did he easily delegate important details to others or did he

try to oversee as much as possible personally?

The weight of responsibility which JAR[ZEL&(I felt he carried, caused
him to extend personal supervision over every pbssible issue. He was not,
however, a slave of this attitude. He was well organized and systematic and
approached various issues selectively, taking into consideration the situation .
which existed, and the executive capabilities of his subordinates. In the
issues which he, at any given time', considered crucial, .regardless. of their
chéracter (great or even triflling) he not only assigned specific tasks to
individuals but meticulously outlined the ways and means of accamplishing
these tasks. In situations in which he recognized that he could afford to do.
so, even with issues of great inportance, he merely outlined the perimeters,
leaving the initiatfve and details to others., He did not divide the issues
into important and trifling; practlcdlly, however, he attempted to influence
everything. | |

He was particularly fond of creating various types of progranmatic
documents. In the first half of the seventies (as he in earnest covmenced to
spread his wings as the Minister of National Defense), there were tens of
programs, plans, principles, statutes, instructions, manuals, ete. of various

types issued under his direct leadership. Nearly every one of those documents:

had a mark of his personal corrections and carpletions, and many were -sinply
re-edited by him. Fe was very proud of this and as the gove_mnent"s Prime
Minister he transferred these methods to the state-wide forum.
He inoculated his subordinates with the classical milit'dr'y methods of
—_ management and camand via the established chain of coomand. He, himself, on

the other hand, very often departed fram these principles, sending same of his
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directives, orders or instructions, and even texts of his proposals which he
considered particularly good, down two or three steps below, bypassing the
chain of comand. When advised about the negative aspects of such pfocedure he
flinched, maintaining that his recammendations often failed to reach lower

levels, were distorted or vulgarized.

b) Did JARUZELSKI only delegate authority to a few t.rusted subordinates?
Did he personally specify to wham he was delegﬁtiné authority or was it just
passed down the chain of command to the appropriate person?

JARUZELSK] avoided creating an informa]l division between trusted and
less trusted subordinates. As the Minister of National Defense, he was on
first name basis with all Vice-Ministers anq chiefs of various central organs
of the Ministry of National- Defense (i.e., he called them by their first
names, and they addressed his as "Citizen General") but he referred to them
with respect, He delineated the Ifnﬂts of their authorities in such a manner
that none of them could daminate the otheré. Even the Chief of General Staff
of the Polish Armed Forceé who, by virtue of his position coordinated the
activities of all central institutions of the Ministry of National Defense,
had no exceptional privileges and could only politely ask all Vice-Ministers
to do samething. ' |

Delegation of his authority was chiefly resolved by JARUZELSKI

through his selection of the cadre and through the delineation of authority of

individuvals in specific positions, a system to which he himself subsequently
adhered.
P In not quite a decade, he neutralized in M\D nearly all of his

potential rivals and exchanged nearly all of the camand staffs of the
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Cammanders of Military Distficts and Branches of the Armed Forces down to
Divisional and independent units inc'lusively. In the same vein, he introduced
a system of a "carousel of positions", frequently rotating cadre personnel at
the same level of camand, so that ho one could feel too certain in his
position. |

Despite the fact that JARUZELSKI attached considerable weight to the
intellectual qualities. of the cadre, he did not push real intelligent
personalities for .specific posts, if they were sinultaneéusiy independent
thinkers, Rgther, he kept such people in & shadow, demanding from them a
variet.y of opinions, expertise, analysis and appraisals, or resolutions of
definite problems. He manned the key positions of the armed _forces with
mediocre but loyal people, particularly favoring the so called "akémn“, f.e.,
those who were ruthless and despotic.

JARUZELSK] could not, however, pemmit himself to meke all decisions
about the cadre. In his immediate entburage there remained at least two.
Vice-Ministers who worked for both sides, Sov_iet and Polish. To the first
protege of Moscow, Lt. Gen. Jozef URBANOWICZ, -hé had t6 give the high post of
his first deputy. To neutralize his influence, however , JARUZELSKI limited
his authority almost entirely to carmplaints and grievances, initiatives and
innovations. . To the second protege, Lt. Gen. Eugeniusz MOLCZYK, the Inspector
General of Training and the wartime front carmander of the Polish Armed
Forces, he gave no authority to cammand these forces in p.eacetim.e..

At the time of the social crisis in Poland in 1980/#2 and the changes

in the highest echelons of the power elite in the PPR, inspired by the USSR,

— JARUZELSK] 's mistrust of his closest co-workers increased rmrkedly.'He did

not, however, permit this to be apparenf, but limited the group of his mots
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trusted closest associates to his old and tested friend Gen;-SI“HCKI.
(reéponsible for the direction of the armed forces and the preparation of
t)lfrtial law), aﬂd' the Chief of Cabinet of MND, subsequently the Chief of
the Directorate of the Council of Ministers, Maj. Gen. Minister, Michal
JANISZEWSKI (responsible for directing the Council of Ministers)., Gradually,
as the econamic problems came to the fore, he inecluded in this group civilian
specialists - Alfred QORENDA and Wladyslaw BAKA. ‘

With the exception of Gen. SIWICKI, to whan JARUZELSKI granted, by a
special order, an authority to direct activities of the whole national defense
establishment, not one of the other people could take advantage of any
authority or entitlaments not connected with their offici@lly assigned
responsibility.

¢) Did JARUZELSKI personally follow-up on status checks and the
final results of delegated assignments, or did he just expect that things
would be done?

JARUZFLSK] took over the typical characteristic of the leadership of
the system which attached much more attention to tﬁe deciared content rather
than to act‘ual deeds. He believed in the magic of words and even 'rmré in the
causative power of various_prograns, plans, directives and legally formal,
printed regulations. As the Chief of the General Staff, subsequently, as the
Minister of Defense, and also already the Prime Minister of the PPR, he

directed all his unconsumed energy toward the shaping of the future,

distinetly closing his eyes on reality. He treated controls and examination of
reality as only instrumental. On the one hand, he made a great issue about the

need for effective inspections and scrupulous accounting by his subordinates
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of their assigned tasks and organized spectacular control activities. On the
other hand, he created a defined climate for formalism and the subordination
of any results of inspection to the previoqsly prescribed fiction. '

In the past, JARUZELSKI supposedly had earnest intentions for a more
diligent follow-up of the implementation of the program-tasking paper work
created at the level of MD. An example ot-this could be the fact that one
of his first noves; as the Chief of the General Staff of the Polish Armed
Forces, was the introduction into the ammed forces of a system of
accountability of the oannanﬁers for their assigned tasks. This system
survives until today in the armed forces,and it is now also beingvtransplanted
to the civilian authoritiés.

In the framework of this system, the Viée%Winisteps of Defense,
cammanders of Military Distriets and branches of the armed forces, had to
account annually before the Minister of National Defense about the
inplementation, by their subordinate institutions and armed forces, of thé
assigned tasks. In turn, these subordinates, called to account their
subordinates, in a similar fashion, and all this went through the chain of
carmand down to the lowest level.

While at the lowest level this accountability made same éense
(because the cammanders remained directly involved with their troops and knew
what went on), a the level of the MD this was a pure fiction.

This fiction stemmed fram the fact that the accounting docummentation
was generally prepared on the basis of the reports by those who were called to
account, Since there were neither appropriate methods nor personnel to verify

— these reports, the appraiéal of the individual who submitted his report

depended, in a large measure, on his ability to prepare certain reports rather
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tﬁan on the actual status quo.

JARUZELSKI did not personally check the reports, studies and
inplementaltion of tasks that he assigned. He never had time for it. If he
did go any place, it was more of a gala performance with all the ceremonies
rather than an actual investigation of the situatioon at hand. In general,
he avoided locations where he could find the proverbial bottam. As the result
he was poorly informmed not only about the realities of »the life in-the‘ country
but also what really transpifed in the armmed forces. -In this fashion, living
in a fiction, he created new fiction. The camnnds of the military districts
and of branches of the amed forces, as well as many cameanders of lower
echelons, accepted JARUZELSKI's tasking with great reservations, claiming that
the tasks were unrealistic, "tailored" rather for the next; the twenty-first
century. Even within his closest circle, it was said that he "has his head in
the clouds", that he sees the country and his armed forces more along the
lines of his idealistic wishes nﬁd desires than for what they really are. The
eriticism, however, rarely reached the mentor since he was not inclined to
listen to it and, if it was in any way connected with a judgment of his
decisions, could very well spell the beginning of the end of the career of
anyone who dared to express such criticism. | '

With this background JARUZELSKI rid himself astutely of Gen. Jozef
KAMINSKI, one of the oldest and the most experienced generals. KAMINSKI, even

though in the past he was once JARUZELSKI's cammander, never had any ambitions

to take over the post of the Minister of the National Defense. As an old
hand, however, he did question certain moves of JARUZELSK] as inpractical. In
— response he was at first transferred fram the Conmander of the Pameranjan

Military District (which he camanded for more than ten years and where he |
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first to win his post), then to the post of the Deputy Chief of Staff of the
Carbined Axmed Forces in Moscow., After carpletion of hisb assignment in |
Moscow” he had to satisfy himself with the post of the Cammandant of the
General Staff Academy.

It appears certain that JARUZELSKi was,.to a certain degree, afraid
of KAMINSKI as his potential rival, but the real beginning of the end of
KAMINSKI's career commenced at the moment when the latter started to question
JAmZmS{I's realisn. JARUZELSKI, Ias he grew in power, became more and more
convinced about his own infallibility, and considered every eriticism, even an
attempt to portray reality as it was an attempte to undermine his
his position. _

During the crisis in Poland, at the Plju'ty conferences in the mjlitary,
it was pointed out to JARUZELSKI that he departed from reality, ﬁ statement
which he found shocking. We had accepted this criticism almost with
humility, but there were few indications that he drew any appropriate

consequences fram it or that he had changed.

5. What was JARUZELSKI's decision-making style?

JARUZELSKI was the type of a commander who gave the impression that
he had met all the challenges half-way, and had not 'only a strictly defined,
experienced attitude toward all the problams under consideration but also
ready solutions. |

' These were, hméver, only appearances. In reality he was most
. cautious in undertaking any decisions, gi*eat or small. He never made

decisions percepi'tously, especially under the the influence of emotions
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or passion. Difficult decisions took their time to ripen with him, at times
for weeks (for instance, the govermment provocgtion in BYDADSZCZ in the spring
of 1981), and the most difficult (the iﬁpositibn of martial law) took several
months. » |
Though he gladly took advantage of the adyice and expertise of the
specialists and listened to the proposals of his closest associates, it was a
rare occassion when he was influenced by their views. His decisions were
independent and resulted rather from his own contarplations, frequently in
solitude.
He shied sway from schematic and simple decisions. Rarely, if ever,
did he see 6ﬁly one solution. m the contrary, it became nearly a rule that
he indicated various alternative solutions or only defined eertain directions
of relevant activities, leaving for himself a margin of freedom for subsequent
changes, depending on the development of the situation.
@) Did JARUZELSKI meet with his advisers and jointly discuss options
in detail and then jointly select the best option, or did he héve
advisors present options fram which he then selected his choice?
In his day-to-day leadership activity over the armed torces and later
over the ship of state, JARUZELSKI did not avoid personal meetings with
his advisers to discuss concrete issues with them. In fact, he used this vefy
method during the crisis, at the time when the sensibility of certain issues
did not favor their discussion in a wider cirele. This was, however, an
unusual period in history and the issues involved weré also unusual. In

general, JARUZELSKI distinctly preferred a formal examination of issues and

discusions of various options at the meetings of the so called "collegial

organs" sueh, which pertained to the armed forces, at the meetings of the
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MD team and the Military Council of MND; and those concerning national
issues, at the meetings of the Camittee of the Defense of State, govermment's
presidium and the Council of Ministers.l

His particular attachment to formalism and bureaucracy was probably
the deciding factor in his application of this method of wielding power and of
formulations of decisions. To a large extent, it also stemmed fram his
personal predisposi.tions. JARUZFLSK] absorbed written texts like lightning;
he had an outstanding visual Mry, and he was especially well disposed |

toward carpleted docunents. He was not particularly effective in discussions,

oral considerations or in unexpected situations. Moreover, he needed time to

think through every important issue. Plaéing these issues on the table of the

"collegial organs"- neetings,'he was winning both, his strongest and his
weakest points. |
Echelons, responsible for the specifie issues, were duty-—boﬁnd to
report in writing seven to ten, and sometimes more days before the meeting.
These studies were then researched_ and cammented upon iniiially by the
specialists of the office of the Minister of Defense or the ‘office of the
Council of Ministers and then submitted to JARUZELSKI with the so called
information bank".2 JARUZELSKI perused these data in detail; demanding
as needed, explanations of various\ iésues. In the seclusion of hié office he
formulated his own view of the problem and designed the outlines of his
eventual decisions or directions for further tasks. | |
During the meetings of the collegial organs the discussions about
problams or issues took place in a fashion in which the the chief of the
specific aactivity presénted a brief introduction (most frequently he

presented the status quo and reported corrective action and last minute
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changes to his own resolutions). Thereafter, the participants of the meeting
posed questions and expressed their own viewé. JARUZELSKI took no part in the
discussion, merely sumarizing it and expressing his own position.
JARUZE1SK1's pronouncements were very lenghty and at times exceeded the total
time of the camments by all other participants. He always spoke -
extarporaneously using the materials prepared for him by the office of ihe MD
or the office of the Council of Ministers and his personal notes.

| Rarely, if ever, did he express his categdrlcal views abéut a
specific option for a sblution. I know of no case in which he would tell
anyone fram his entourage that he was wrong or that his proposals were
unacceptable. He proposed what he liked, remaining silent about the options
which he opposed. An excep'tion were the issues which he approved on the spot.
In the majority of the cases he provided recanmendations ﬁbout the directions
which ought to be followed in the tasks of the prebaration of the issue for
a final decision. The final decisions v}ere considered by him in solitude. He
ehtered his own corrections and supplements, and signed an appropriate |
executive document or approved minutes of a meeting of the collegial body,

adding his own fine points or recommendations.

b) Did he withdraw fram others when difficult decisions had

to be made and then decided in solitude?

Yes. This was 'especially typical during the socio—poll.tical erisis
in Poland when atterpts were being made to push toward him methods of
resolution of social conflicts which did not fit with his estimates of the

— situation. In this period it was not difficult to notice that he was torn

internally when on the one side he shared the decision of the Soviet
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initially no chances of implementation of this intent. He distinctly -Avoided
any contacté when he sensed that he would be subjected to pressure, He
literally hid from KULIKOW, inter alia, and met with him only then when he had
no other choice. He had no desires for meetings and telephone cgills fram
certain Party activist hardliners, such as Stanislaw KOCIOLFK. In the initial
phase of the erisis, JARUZELSKI prepared the most difficult decisions together
with Stanislaw KANIA. After the VIII Extraordinary Party Congress (in July |
1981), after which the Rhssians dropped .thelr half-hearted support for KANIA,
JARUZELSKI made his own decisions. |

6. In staff situations in which JARUZELSKI was in overall command

{in the field), were his decisions usually cautious and
conservati\re? How S0 or how not so?

In contrast to problems of political and socio-econamic na,t'ure, with ,
which JARUZELSKI moved very carefully and with which he demonstrated adherence
to required schemes, in staff Situation, when he actéd as the overall
camander of troops in the fields, he was a courageous innovator who went far
beyond schematic canons and ossified Soviet operational and tactical art. He
was always very well informed about the situation and reacted to it
operationally, making quick decisf_ons. Orally, at every opportunity, he paid
hamage to the Soviet military thought; in practice, though, he continually
searched for samething new which not always fitted the inngiﬁation of Soviet
generals, and at times even evoked horror in them., For instance, in the
maneuvers "LA’IO—M" he made a decl;sion to change the direction of the Polish
P operational front by almost 90 degrees since there arose a ¢hance of attacking

the remote wing and the rear of the 7th US Field Amy. In field exercises he
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camended canmnders for their originality and action which surprised the

opponent, simultaneously fighting routine and conventionalism.

7. What was the overall staff opinion of JARIZELSKI as leader?

As a man? -

JARIZELSKI's reputation as a leader differed and changed with the
passage of time and events. _ ‘

| His inmediate entourage and the higher echelons 'of the Central Organs
of MD evinced the least faith in his leadership talents. In general, he was
accused of having "views which changed with the weather"and of being a career-
seeking man. People carmented in one breath about his proerastination and
inability to make decisions, preoccupation with details, formalism and bureau-
cracy. Frequently he was accused of cowardice.

He did, however, impress the middle ranking and junior officers who
knew him better fram his flashy side, fram his rhetoric full of zeal énd faith
in his endeavours, rather than fram his actual deeds which often contradicted
what he was saying. What also influenced the relationship of the middle level
and junior officers to JARUZELSKI was the fact that in many instances he was
opening for them realistic visions of pramotions and developnent.

As the crisis developed it was easy to notice that the opinion of the
cadre about.JARUZELSKI was shifting in his favor. His famous, full of
restraint and measured presentations in the SEJM of the PPR (immediately
after his acceptance of the office of the Prime Minister), and the Ninth
Extraordinary Party Congress, not only quieted down the criﬂcism but also won
him many fervent followers, The greatest poéularity, however, gave him the

attack of the hardliners of the Party, led by GRABSKI and MICZYK inspired
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by the USSR and intended to remove JARUZELSKI and KANIA from power which ended
in failure. It was a.turning point in which he was ennobled in the eyes of the
ofticers as an independent leader who really cared about the interests of the
country. One could say that after this incident the only group of adversaries
which remained were the generals and officers tied to Moscow and the
Party hardliners clustered around MDLCZYK, KREPSKI (at that time the chief of
" the Air Force) and JASINSKI (Deputy chief of General Staff of the Polish Armed
Forces). a |

It seems to me that there was a lesser disagreement in the opihlons
about JARUZELSKI as a man among the officers of the Cbntrélvlnstitutions of
the M\D,

Despite sf~the panpous style of life, as I already mentioned, he was
extremely tactful and poiite. He addre$séd all as "canrades" or "citizens”,
colonel, captain, ete. .At the manent of greeting sameone (which he
incidentally liked'very much) he stopped before each in'a position of
attention, inelined his head which-gave the impression that he noticed in
everyone, regardless of rank, a man, and a camrade-in-arms. He was admired
for his diligence and for not succurbing, as many other dignitaries did, to .
the terptations of luxury. Also, no one could accuse him of unethical or
immoral behavior.

8. Did JARUZELSKI treat his subordinates equally or show
favoritism? How? For what reason did the favoritism ocecur?

JARUZELSKI reposed a different degree of trust in different
subordinattfgsﬁough'}%;;-degree of his trust did not influence his treatment

— of these people. Clearly, however,in the mament in which he caught the wind in

the sails of history, he began to push into the first place,in the assessment
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"and reward of his subordinates, such factor as: loyalty, obedience, and
instant response to any tasking. He loathed, hcwéver, sinple boot-l_icking
though, he was eager to search for confirmmation of his greatness by-
officers. If one were aware of this maknesé of his and knew how to use it
adroitly, he could count on preferential treatment, Such specific preferential
tretment was, however,reflected by JARIZELSKI via official personnel decisions
since he had never shown any favoritism. His demands upon all were high and.
identical, and he never indulged anyone. He valued good work and looked up.on
the results not with a view who did the work but rather how it was done.

Afraid of any slanderous remarks about favoritism he frequently by-
passed official recognition of people who éonstituted his inmediate |
entourage. Thus, for instance, his officers for special tasks, aides-de-camp
and security personnel received a lesser number of :pr(motions, awards and_'
other recognition than their contemporaries in other central organs
(instytucje centralne) of M\D. Even these people were rewarded to a ﬁ
lesser exténd that the people in military units and in the field. He had his
favored officers for special tasks, aides-de-cemp, drivers, a st’emn;dess and
even a waitress, but these people never took advantage of any particular
privileges.

If he felt that sameone fram his personal entourage deserved a
particular recognition he would bring him & hare fram his hunting trip, or a
wild duck or a pheasant but he would not pramote the person earlier than it
was preseribed in the mandatory "Operational Personnel Principles" (Zasady

Dzialania Kadrowego).
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9. Were there any occasions when JARUZEISKI became emotional (e.g.
angry, upset, highly anxious, ete)? What did JARUZELSKI do? |

JARUZELSK]I was a staid type who.,' in general, controlled any external
manifestation of his amwtions. Favorable, satisf&ing situation and personal
successes he acknowledged by an almost unnoticeable relaxation. In settings
and situations which were unpleasant for him or carplicated, he was
relatively calm and camposed.

Despite thg outward calm and external camposure it was not difficult
to see that he easily became nervous for trifling reasons. Generally, he was
irritated by the low quality ‘(in his judgment) of the documents and materials
submitted to him for approval. In such instances he reacted iri a curt and
tart manner such as: ;'It is difficult to believe, General, that you have read
this!" Or, " I am concerned about the activities of the echelon which
prepared this for you, camrade General. Please look info this and draw
appropriate conclusions! " Or "This is just cotton !" (he would so describe
voluninous material without real content); "This is jﬁst broken stones"v (ﬁhich
meant that there were same redeeming thoughts but théy were disorganized,
ete.) |

At the time, when he was the Minister of National 'Defense he was most
frequeni:ly upset about the conflicts in the relationship Setween the military
and the society (if there were any unfavorable to the military article in the
newspaper, carplaints about the military submitted to the Central Cammittee
the PUNS, soldiers' brawls in §ub1ic places, etc). These conflicts were also
caused by the so called "unusual acecidents", in which because of lack of

—_ supervision or samebody's carelessness lives and valuable military equipment

were lost (aircraft accidents, weapons and explosives warehouses fires, and
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Similarly, he would became angry whenever weapons or 'clas.:sified ‘
documents were lost or sameone disclosed classified information.

Upset and losing his camposure he would react sharply, but would not
explode. Conmanders were afraid to see him in such situations because
the discussions would be long and unpleasant. He accepted no excuses and his
ramarks were brusque and far reaching., Such discussions, however, never |
offended anyone's dignity. He was also very restrained in punishment.

JARUZELSKI did not smoke, though, in manents of extreme nervousness
he would ask for a cigarette and smoked it as if he were a regular smoker.
One could also notice that in moments of extreme psychological tension he
limited his contacts and attempted to regain émposure ih solitude.

There is, though, a separate chapter of JARUZELSKI's behavior
connected with the social erisis in Poland and his taking over of the office
of the Prime Min.ister and subsequently also the office of theiFirst
Secretar&. Without any doubt it was the period of nearly uninterupted
stresses and the greatest psychological tensions. He had undebgone then a
significant change. Before all', he lost his characteristic self-assurance.
Once,l he was even close to a breakdown, It happened in the last days of
November 1980, when the Soviet side demended fram him -cooperation in
eonjuctions with the introduction of the armed forces of the Warsaw Pact |
in Poland at the beginning of December 1980.

I could not cbserve him at that time since he isolated himself
campletely fram the rest of the world. I know, however, fram the comments of

—- Maj. Gen, Tadeusz HUPALOWSKI, (then the first deputy of the Chief of General
Staff of the Polish Armed Forces) who was called into JARUZFLSKI's office
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.Soviet Ammed Forces and who said'that JARUZELSKI was so upsef that he swayed
and could not utter a sentence. HUPALOWSKI said it directly to me: "Today,
for the first time even, I talked with & shred of man who was once calléd
JARUZELSKI . " - -

Other people, fram his immediate entourage who rm’nined in contact
with him described to me his then ‘psychological and physical state in a |
similar fashion. ‘

His state of listlessness and depression did not, however, last too
long. Fram what I could observe, every crisis (and there were several until
November 1981) released in him as time went by, additional strength and energy
and strengthened his stubborness for the realization of his chosen goals,

In all situation JARUZELSKI was nervous before every one of his
public appearances. Despite the fact that he took pleasure in delivering
. speeches, he was always afraid whether they would. come out well. He worked
on the texts of his speeches until the very last minute weighing nearly every

“word which he was to utter. Just before he stepped up to the speakers' podium
there was no way to talk to hixﬁ. Often, he was shaking. Finishing his speech
he expected fram his entourage épin'ions ‘and views about the ligteners"
reaction. _

10. Were there any particular types of situation in which JARUZELSKI
would rely heavily on advisors and other types of situations in which he would
not ? Exanples?

On the basis of he facts known to me, I could not single out any

— specific situations in which JARUZELSKI depended eépecially on his advisors

and such in which he did not do so. It seamns to me rather, that there were no
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such instances.

He was always personally involved in issues which he, at the given
mament considered as a priority, transtell'ring to others such which co_uld wait
a while or those which he consideréd could b’eAcertaiAnly well prepared by
others without his personal involvement.

For instance, in the period of time in which he became Prime
Minister, he turned all his énergy toward the political and soé.io-econanic‘
sphere delegating to SIWICKI the full authority for the preparation of the
introduction of the martial law. Despite the fact that he attached a great
weight to this act, since March 1981 (when for the first time he was presented
with the carplex plans of the activities in that period),until 30 October 1981
(when he made the final decision in thié case and conmmenced coordination with
the allies) he spent no more than 8-10 hours on this problem, mainly reading
and correcting the Decree of the Council of State about the introduction of
the martial law, and the relevant inplementinng documents. o

While he considered the issue of the introductioﬁ of the martial law,
all of his attention was focuéed upon the political propaganda side and
the activities of the security forces and miiltia. He was, howevér, less
interested in the details of military operations..

In the period of time in which I had access to JARUZELSKI one could
discern certain areas in which he felt at ease without any assistance fram
advisors, and other areas in which he depended more on his'a‘d.vis_ors than on
his own experience. ‘ -

In the first group I would inciude, outside 6f the military issues,

— Party idelology, foreign policy and partly interﬁa] poliey, including

relations with the Church, In the second group was the key problem of the
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of the power of the State: "SOLIDARITY". Here, JARIZELSKI took advantage of

the advise of Mieczyslaw F. RAKOWSKI. In econamic matters he relied more on

the concepts of Wladyslaw BAKA and Alfred GOREWTA.

11. How did JARUZELSKI mmage his staff meetings"

In the Polish Peoples' Ammed Forces durmg JARIZELSK]I's regime, as
well as under his predecessors, there were n_either traditions nor custans_ot
calling and holding meetings (conferences) of the stéff which would be chéi.red _
by the’ Minister of National Defense. There were, though, formal meetings of
the so called collegial advisory organs, chaired by JARUZELSKI. |

These collegial advisory organs were: the Ministry of National
Defense Team and the Military Council of the Ministry of National Defense. 3.
In addition, as needs arose there were conferences and gatherings at the
central echelon of the Ministry of National Defense, devoted to specific
themes, such as: meetings about.the ideological themes, counter-action against
enemy propaganda (both sub_jecfs invented by JARUZELSKI), and confer.ences about
rationalization §f economic managements, etc.  The hosts of such gatherings
and' their chaimen were the viéaninisters responsible fmf the speciific -
segment of activities while the Minister of National Defence acted as a guest
and, of course, the chief mentor.

Aside fram this, a brlefing of the leading_ echelon of the Polish
Amed Forces took place once a year' during which the Minister of National

Defense summarized the past year' and set the tasks for the next year.
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11, (a,b,c,d,) Were they rigid and formal,or casual and easy going? Was
there a strict agenda that was rigidly adhered to or was it flexible? ﬁid
meetings always start and end precisely on time? Was JARUZELSKI ins_istent on
this? Did subordinates feel they could easily speak up or disagree with
JARUZELSK1? '

The meetings of the ia'dvisory collegial orgaris chaired by JARUZELSKI
were always very formal and rather stiff. They were usually attended by_ the
nurber§ of a given organ or persons invited to examine specific problems (most
often their chief authors or experts). The list 'of_these_persons was
approved by the Chief of Cabinet of MD. Places were taken in accordance with
the preécrlbed protocol. There was always the same JARUZELSKI's officér for
special tasks who acted as a minute-taker and prepared an offieial protocol of
the meeting.

Issues were discussed and examined t‘oliowing an agenda prepared ahead
(at lest a quarter of the year before). In over ten yearsvperiod no one could
cite a case in which an item was removed or postponed for later considerétion,
on JARUZELSKI's initiative. Scmétimes, however, JARUZELSK! agreed to meke a
change when a motion was made by a chief of the'responsible a‘qtivity,
especially if samething were unfinished or new events took place which
reqiuired substantive changes and carpi_etions. He did this, however,
with considerable.resistance and evinced in such instances his
dissatisfaction,

Meetings began punctuhlly and ran aléng the strictly established
order of the agenda. They were opened formally by JARUZELSKI who in his

— ritual introduction presented this very agenda (at times he even cammented on

the planned breaks), pointed out the goals of the meetings or most frequently
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He chaired the meeting composed, giving the floor to each in'turn
as they asked for it. I know of no instance in which he’ would call upon -
samebody to state his views. Al_so,' rarely during the diseussion would he
pose questions. He Mld never interrupt anyone during a person’s
presentation. In principle, the subordinates could freely expres's their views.
In practice, however, to my knowledge, differences of opinions arose only
between the members of the collegial organs and I have never Ihea_l"d of an
instance in which any subordinate would disagree wfth JARUZELSKI, If so, then
such remarks were directed in a rathe} diplamatic form in the proposals
submitted to him, _

It was difficult, besides, td have a different view fram JARUZELSKI
since the latter always expressed his own views at the end of .the meeting
while he sumarized the discussion, |

Generally, meetings of the-collegial advisory organs were for
JARUZELSKT a form of a tribune which he used to transmit his thughts and
intentions downward to the armed forces. He was always very well ppepared for
it. His remarks were much more than a niere summary of the disecussion. He did
not like to slide over the surface of the problems. Rather, he usually
analyzed them in details surprising the listeners as much with the accuracy of
his observations, as with the originality of the solutions outlined by him,
One could say that all meetings, conferences and gétherings formed one of

the most important basis of strengthening his authority.
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-12. What were JARIZEISKI's views on the PZPR? His attitude toward
politics before 1980%? How active a Party mmb.er' was he? His interest in
Central Conmittee activities and deliberations once he was elected to thai
body? Did he attend most CC meetings? |

JARUZELSKI was connected with the PZPR much longer and much more
pérsonally and ideologically involved that it is generally assumed.

He was identified by the conservative Party wing as a '"czmeleon"sincé
supposedly by changing the basis of his convinections he survived at -leaét four
sharp turns of that Party (1948, 1956, 1970, 1980). He not only .did ‘not £511
off on any of those turns but on the contrary, indeed managed to improve his
position each time. In my estimate this is only partly true. It is true thﬁt
* JARUZELSKI did indeed survived all shake-ups of the Party but lperhaps not
because he changed' his views but rather because he néver voiced any extreme
views about internal affairs, always remining closely allied with the
center. Moreover, schemes of all kinds were alien to him and he adjusted
easily to new conditions and situations, »

Without any doubts, the most important fact in his career was that
his Party activities were 1imi ted meinly to the realm of the armed forces
Party ideology and foreign policy. | : _ |

He joined the PZPR or rather its predecessor thé PPR (Polish Workers'
Party) in 1947 at the time when the Soviet and Polish cam'unists began to form |
secretly their cells ("yacheiki") 4, in the Polish Peoples' Am\ed |
Forces. He, therefore, did not join the Party as a volunteer but, in
.conformance with the then applied practice was chosen and recammended by
sanecone, and subsequently "at his request” secretly accebted.

The relatively late date and the circwrétances in 'which JARUZFLSKI
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joined the Party, can not by any means, be interpreted as an indication of his
wavering. As an officer of Polish Peoples' Ammed Forces he could not have
joined the Party earlier for the simple reason that the Party had not yet been
recruiting members among the military at that time limiting its hmbership'to‘
the old camunists fram the so called Union of Polish Patriots. (Zwiazek
Patriotow Polskich) fram the USSR, subsequently adding the activists of the
Polish Workers' Party (PPR) fram Poland itself.

‘There were only scraps of such information penetfating the'Genera.l
Staff of the Polish Armed Forces at that time. These sources indicated that
JARUZELSKI 's membership in the Party was neither accidental nor careerF _
motivated, JARUZELSKI was already earlier ptepared for it ideologically and
organically and there should be no doubt that his decision in that respect was
purposefull and based on much earlier infused conviction.

In the early post war years, JARUZELSKI was fascinated with the
rgvolutionary ideals and with the introquctlbn of the new order in I;oland. He
was very active, often delivering relevant political speeches in the framework
of his official duties and in the so called Social Work Circles. Later he
became nearly a professional speaker at the meetings and Party training -
programs. His activity foeuséd upon spreading and _disseninating the theories
of marxism-leninism, political econamy and history of the All-Union Conmunist -
Party (bolsheviks') (Soviet~-Carmunist Party). He revealed himself as a shining
specialist in the critique of the social relationships of'pre-war Poland, and
in the ‘condemation of internal political opposition, and mrld-wide '
imperialism. He did not, however, involved himself in any internal in-

%A{,wy'-"‘.m especially in condeming the so called "rightist national
deviation", i.e. the GOMULKA-SPYHALSKI group.
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His particular talents in propaganda-asgitation activities attracted

attention of others and became one of the most important motives for
appointing him in 1980 to the most significant Party post of the chief of the
Main Polistical Directorate (MPD) of the Polish Armed Forces 5. and |
subsequently his introduction fram the so éalled "key" to the Central
Cami ttee of the PUWP (PZPR).

During the time of QIMULKA, JARUZELSKI had no great influence on any
issues of the Party or of the State, in fact he ﬁever attarpted any,such N
thing. The dogmatic First Secretary needed neither _advicé nor counsel., He
did, however, demand loyalty and obedience. JARUZELSKI understood this very
well and concentrated all his energies on the development of Party's influence
in the military, as well as on strengthening the authority and. jhstifying’ thé
policies of the First Secretary in this environment, One could say that as‘
the Chief of the General Staff, and subsequently thé Minister of** |
National Defense, JARUZELSKI felt hhrself to be rmré a Party activist than a
military coomander, devoting more time and attention to the far_ty's ‘politieal
activities than to purely military affairs. . |

He looked upon each issue, studied it and made decisions in the
context of .the Party's polities and interests, demonstrating with each step
his dedication and faithfullness, 'He took an aétive part in all the mgetingé
of the Central Camittee of PUWP (PZER). Often, he took part in the meetings
of various problem-solving cunnissions of that body, especially those with
ideological and foreign poliey issues, His activity during thaet period did
not, however, go beyond his granting in the name of the military, of the |
— wornout stereotype and faithfully submissive support for the policies of

|




Wilson Center Digital Archive _ Original Scan

S}QRET

34

JARUZELSKI was shaken up by the events of 1970 in Poland and all
indications point to the fact that he honestly hoped to draw lessons fram
these events for himself aend for the Party. Attenpting to rid himself
of the responsibility which wéighed upon him, in the light of the Polish
legislation, for the bloody supression of the workers' revolt on the
coastline, he personally prepared a document in which he fonhﬁlated ﬁis own
evaluation of these events, and drew conclusions for the future (see Document
Nr.PR-667).

Everything ended, though,on only good intentioné. ﬁespite the fact
that after 1970 as a menber of the Political Bureau of the Central Comittee
of PONP (PZPR) and the main supporter of GfEREK‘s authority, his position
within the Party being much stronger, he never took advantage to use it for
the implementation of his own conclusions fram these bloody events.
JARUZELSKI quickly submitted himself to GIEREK, even creating within the
armed forces a sort of cult around the man. Re regularly invitéd GIEREX to
take part in the most inpoftant military undertakings (exercises, Phrty
conferences) and for visits to military units. |

On his own initiative he introduced, in the "™Main Defense Tasks of
the PPR" (Wezlowe Zalozenia Obronne PRL), the most important document which
formulated official doctrine of the defense of the coﬁntry, new legal basis
which gave the Party and its First Secretary specific authority to_vdirect‘ the
armed forces and the defense of the country. In the second half of the
seventies,.he took part in the behind the scenes attempts to change the
constitution and establish in the Polish People's Republic, an official

— position of the President of the PPR, foreseen for the First Secretary of the

" Party.
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In the seventies, JARUZELSKI supported uneritieally GIEREX's program
of an accelerated development of the country and of construction of a new
Poland. He took part in all meetings of the Political Bureau and of the
Central Canmittee of the PUWP (PZPR). I do not know if he spoke at each
meeting and voiced his views. There is no doubt, however, that he was always
wery well prepared for it. .'I‘he office of the Minister of Defense, the General
Staff of the Polish Ammed Forces and other central institutins of the MND
always had full hands with analysis and evaluation of the material and
and documents, which had to be studied and accept_ed by these organs.

Fran the documents which I myself prepared or what was prepared by my'
colleagﬁes from the office of the Minister of Natidnal_Defense and the General
Staff, I know that all went well at the Political Bureau and that JARUZELSKI

did not raise any voice of wisdan at these meetings.

13. What Were JARUZELSKI's Views on the Catholic Church?

The Poles are & nation of ramanties and -dreamers who often value
their heroes not by what they are in reality but rather what they would like
them to be. In 1980 and 19§1 during the crisis in Poland a tale was |
spreading, first at hame and later abroad aboui the appearance of new Konrad
WALLENROD 6, in the person of General JARUZELSKI, who once, when he was a

@ _ .
X young boy graduated fram convent school, and today with God in his heart is

only waiting tb~ free Pol?md fram the chains of carmunism. As an indieation

of his real goals it was mentioned and it is even today being repeated in the

serious pdlitical circle_s that JARUZELSKI réstored certain relié‘ious fréedaﬁs
— in Poland (such as permission to build churches, radio transmission of

Sunday masses) and the establishment of a dialogue with the Church.
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In this little story (which 1 suspect is being spread not only by
special propaganda of the Polish regime) the only truth is probably the fact
that JARUZELSKI actually did attend e convent school. Sinée that'fine,
however , many years had passed during which hé became an "enlightened" marxist
who is supremely aware that his ideology and practice can not be reconciled
with the Church.

JARUZELSKI never hid his views about the Church from his military
colleagues. He always expressed his views explicitly about reduction of the
role and the influence of the Church'in the PPR, considering the Church as'the
bulwark of the reaction (opposition) and backwardness. In practice
however, he went much further since in the Polish armed forces the Church was
not only carpletely eliminated but, violating the freedam of conscience
guaranteed in the constitution, he applied repressive measures for religloﬁs'A

- prectices against nﬁliiary personnel. In the years of 1971-73 there were 285
punishments by the Party for religious practices. In these, 99 punishments
were given to officers, 28 to warrant officers, 89 to éareer NXs, 12 to cadet
officers, 44 to enlisted men and 13 to civilian enpléyees of thé military. A
similar, in fact h higher nurber of phnishnents were inen in the subsequent
years of the seventies. The officers and NODs, party members and non-party
were punished not only for their own religléus practices but more often for
religious practices of their wives and children (for instance, religious
marriage ceramony, participating in cathecism classes, cathoLic funeral at
which a priest was in attendance, etc.). The most frequent service punishment
tor religious practices was a transfer to a lower service post, often also
expulsion fram the career service in the Polish Ammed Forces. '

The issues of religious practices by soldiers and the methods for
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carbatting such praétices in the Polish armed forces were periodically
discussed at the meetings of collegial organs of the MDD, the cammands of the
Military Districts, and branches of the armmed forces. All, what in the
innocent service language was called "immunization of the military agavinst
influences of the clergy"”, was under the patronage of JARIZELSKI, who in this

respect issued confidential directives and intructions and insured their

implementation,

Could JARUZELSKI with such attitude toward the Church, toward
religious freedoms as was amply demonstrated in the military for nearly a
quarter of century, change suddenly in 1980/1981? There is. only one answer:
No! He was and ramined a marxist and a militant atheist. He was, however,
and still remains a good strategist who had been able to see imnedi#té and

. distant objectives, who scrupulately counts and gathers such forces which are
vital to reach these objectives. |

Granting the Church in 1980 certain concession (at which time
JARUZE[&(l's attitude was, if not décisive, at least certainly crucial_) was
not a gesture of the authorities nor & sign of his will, but rather a dramtic
attempt to rescue the regime in the situation which for the Party end
Govermment appéared hopeless. ‘ \

During the crisis, the Party and the authorities were opposed by ten
million mearbers of the "SOLIDARITY" xmlinly fram industrial #nd urban .
centers. An unyielding attitude in sensitive Church issues could have added
at least an additional equal nurber of opponents from among until then still
passive catholic villages. Retreating tactieally, in accordance with LE‘I_IN's
teachings, the Party and the authorities, neutralized the villages radic'ally

LS swd desorientation in the ranks of the catholic segment of "Sqlidarity",

S
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and won the support of the moral authority of the church hierafchy for the
soeial peace".

All of the above reasoning concefning the motives for the treatment
of the Church by the authorities were not formulated by me but actually by
JARUZELSKI who presented them almost literally as I did to the Soviet Marshal
KULIKOV but in carefully chosen words, during the discussion of these proﬁlens
three years ago.

This took place on 12 January 1981 at the time of the official
meeting of the qubined OCormand of the Carbined Armed Forces (ZSZ) with the.
leadership of MND of the PPR, in which I personally'took part. This formal
gathering was intended for the signing of a document about oﬁligations of the
Polish Peoples' Republie to the Warsaw Pact, The Russians, however, used this
meeting as a forum for the criticisn of the conduct of the leadership of PPR
in that period. Since the isSue of the Church, inter alia, distrubed them,
KULIKOV expressed a wish to.view a documentary fllnxabqut the Pbpe's first
visit to Poland. During the viewing, KULIKOV behaved as if he attended a
boxing match, loudly expressing his disapproval during nearly every
sequence, Hb‘threw various remarks and questions to JARUZELSKI and other
generals of the Polish military. JARUZELSKI was visibly dejected and was
unable to retort. The only thing he managed to utter at the end of the
viewing, were the above cited remarks which forced the Party and the
Government to make concessions to the Church. '

I am far‘frun claiming that JARUZELSKI expressed at that time exactly
what he felt or what he wanted to say, especially about. the primitive methods’
_ of carbatting the Church, suggested to him by the Russjans (discrediting of -

clergymen, restrictions in building of religious edifices and religious
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practices, application of repressions, ete.). Similarly, I do not think that

he even intended to transfer literally his experience in carbatting the Church
and religion in the military to the country as a whole. For this |
JARUZELSKI is too intelligent and he knows what eonsequences could éuch a mbve'
entail. For me personally, though, there is absolutely no doubt that his
present flirtation with the Church is being dictated by the unusual situation
in Poland, and will last as long as he wjll need the support of the Church,

or as long as the Church will provide hini such suppdrt.

O\e ought not rule out that knmving the influence of the Church in
Poland and being aware of the inefficacy of the heterofore applied
administrative measures, he will attempt to arrange same kind of a modus .
vivendi based on a role of the _Church strictly limited to pureiy religious

functions.

14. What were JARUZELSKI's views on the Soviets?

a) Were there any inecidents in which he tried to show up the
Soviets? |

There is no doubt that JARUZELSKI bélong_ed to the most authentic
adherents of a close alliance between Poland and the Soviet Union. He felt,
that in the pas.t this alliance provided the basis for the liberation of the
country fram HITLER's occupation, and was the deciding. fac[/%bge social
changes in postwar Poland. He also felt that at this time this alliance
represents the only and unfailing guarantee of retention of the independence
and territorial integrity of the Polish Peoples' Republic. Moreover, he

— considered that the econamics of Poland and the Soviet Union cavplemented each

great perspectives for the econanic development of the country.
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He believed in the peaceful Soviet intentions identifying himself
fully with the aims and methods of this power and its defense policy in the
sphere of relations with the West and especially with the countries of NATO.
He also, without any qualms, became involved in the export of the revolution,
via USSR, to all corners of the world. '

He recognized and honesfly respected the so called speciai role of
the USSR in the "Socialist‘(‘ountries Commonwealth”. He did consider, though,
that as the revolution progressed in the specific countries of this
Commonweal th and the socialist system becames more solidified, the primitive

~ Soviet interventionism in relationship with these countries ought to‘be \
succesively replaced by the authentic leadership functions. He felt that the

" Polish camunists have arrived at the level which not only predisposes them to
to an independent leadership over their own state but also to exert certain
defined influence on the Conmonwealth as- a whole.

He was upset by the treatment of Poland by the second echelon
leadership of the USSR (senior genefals and marshals) as if Poland were one of
their own republics. The respect, however, in which he held this gregt‘ power,

nearly paralyzed him and he never’undertodk-any atterpt alone to stand up

against them. In confliet situation he used his subordinates, while.tpylng_
not to notice the contrariness or sinmply got over it in the cou>rse of dail&
tasks. At times he re;orted to same kind of a diplamatic nuance in a manner
in which in a positive way he pointed out fo the Russians how they ought to
treat the allies fram the Warsaw Pact. |

I admit that in the initial period of my responsibility for
cooperation with the Russians I had difficulties in understending what he:

really wanted. For instance, I was taken back when he admwnished me that
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in ;he Staff study prepared by me for his remarks at the meeting of the

Camittee of the Defense Ministers there was an amission of a camment about
the Soviet proposal on which "Polish side was duly consulted in a democratie
fashion", for which we are very grateful. When I responded that nothing of
this sort took place, he mittered as if to sameone who just dropped on earth:
"that is just the case". |

Since 1 considéred such conduct improper, because we were becoming
participants in the Soviet deception, I sharéd my camments with the Chief of
the General Staff of the Polish Armed Porces, Gen. SIWICKI. He then explained
to me that we had no other choice but to keep renﬁndihg them in a delicate way
that they should do it. ' |

JARUZELSKI knew Russian mentality and their sensivity to critiéisnﬂ
Because of this he not only never criticized them himself but fought egainst
the slightest appearances of suéh criticism on the part of subordinates.

"In only my own enviromment there were two incidents of victimized officers for
their careless caments about the USSR.. Colonel BSUER.who eritized Soviet
activity in Portugal (immediately aftef the "carnation revolution") was trans-‘
ferred fran the General Staff to a remote garrison.

A namination of my own deputy for the position of the cunnandér of
the 5th Ammored Division was revoked for his criticism of the Soviet approach
in armement sales td the Warsaw Pact countries,

In my opinion JARUZELSKI did not oppose criticism of the USSR by
itself (which he himself in many instances shared) but he was afraid to allow
any lexity in the dscipline and the spreading of this phenanénon in the Polish

— Amned Forces, for which he could be held responsible. The officers |

mentioned sbove were punished supposedly not for the sole fact of crificisn
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but rather for the way they expressed this eriticism which eould have spread
to wider enviromment eventually reaching Russians themselves. Had it not been
for this threat the issue would have taken a different turn.

The writer of this study often allowed himse.lf a i-elatively sharp
eritique of Soviet concepts and demands. JARUZELSKI accepted these
eriticisms, though, in a sour fashion since he did not like tq discuss shch

f’hlngs, but all ended well. I even have certain basis for my suppositions that
ny critical approach (to the extent it was possible) toward the USSR was one
of the reasons for entrusting tm with the post connected with the »
military cooperation in the framework of the Warsaw Pact and retention of me
in that position for such a long time. . ‘

JARUZFISKI had no real secrets before Russians, but he did not like
to be surprised by them. Bécause of this, he unde y arious steps to r‘edﬁce :
Soviet penetration of the Polish Armed Forées, and indirectly also of Soviet
influences. With fhls goal in mind, he effectively opposed the reintroduction
of Soviet milifary advisers to various echelons of the Polish military under ﬁ
variety of covers as representatives of the Supreme Conmander
of Cavbined Armed Forces (ZSZ). The status of these representatives in the
Polish Amed Forces which JARUZELSKI assigned to them was far removed fram
Soviet demands and 'statuses which were given to them by the German, Czech and
Bulgarian cammands. JAHZEI.SKl.'gave key positions to people who were not
directly connected with Moscow. He also stemmed the the_unrestricted fla’n of
information to the Russians about the situation in the Polish military.

In this respect, inter alia, he even dared to remove an officer of.
the Polish Forces, Col. ROGAIA fram the genérhl Staff who syStamtical@

ly rendered accessible to the representatives of the Supreme Carmander of the
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Carbined Amed Forces inportant military documents. He gave the Russlans a
free rein in contacting officers and soldiers of the Polish Ammed Forces but
simul taneously he confidentially required thet representatives of -the MND
accanpanied the Soviet generals and officers during their visits to the lower
echelons of the ammed forces,

JARUZELSKI had an excellent personal relationship'with'the deceased
Soviet Nﬁnlsier of Defense, Marshal GRECHKD and nearly the sqne,relationship
characterized by mutual goodwill and personal friendship with his successor,
Marshal USTINOV. The Soviet leadership appraised the personal relations ef
JARUZELSKI toward the USSR ih the "category of contributions of historieal
signiticance.”

Based on this appraisal, Moscow reposed the greatest hopes for the
"restoration of order" especially in JARUZELSKI. When, however, under the
pressure of the population, the authorities kept retreating and JARUZELSKI
delayed using the military until more favorable condltions would arise, the
Soviet leadership considerfed him incapable off acting and undertook concrete
steps to replace him and KANIA with more decisive people. JAMJZEISK] received
a series of reports fram Polish generals and ether .officers who were prepared
for it by the Erbassy ef the USSR in Warsaw and by the representatives of
the Supreme Commander of the Carbined Armed Foreces (2SZ) attached to the A
Polish military. |

In my view, this was an excellent shock therapy which started changes
in JARUZELSKI's attitude toward the USSR. It would be a misunderstanding
to state that JARUZELSKI resorted to same kind of volte face in his estimates

- of the USSR as the ally of the Polish Peoples' Republic. There is no doubt,

though, that he arrived at a conviction, not without certain basis, as it
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is to repetj:n the PPR, one of its scenarios from Hungary, Czechoslovakia or
Afganistan. This convietion solidified with JARUZELSKI sfill more in 1981
when the USSR undertook further preparations in fhis direction. One of theée
was for instance the conecentration of a Soviet armoured unit around Warsaw,
without prior agreement of the official Polish authorities. This unit was in
position to reach in only 20 minutes, the buildings of the Central Committee
of the PUNP, Council of Minlsfers and the Council of State. Another_special
unit was designated to take over the Radio-Televisjon Oenter. within the same
period of time. Also, without the knowledge and agreement of the Polish side,
the Russians set-up on the territory of the PPR a special radio camunica'tion.s
system system to direct the operations of the Combined Armed Foreces. In
addition théy undertook a systematic air delivery of troops and equipment to
various parts of Poland. The pilots of the Soviet aircraft and helicopters
did not subordinate themselves to the Polish Civil Aviation Service thus
endangering even the civil aviation traffie. The height of contenpt and
disrespect or perhaps only blackmail, was the transmittal behind his back of
tasks to the Polish Civil Aviation Service to secure the overflights and
loading on the territory of Poland of over 300 Soviet transport aircraft five _
A hours before the intended start by them of thfee airlift bridges with the USS@
" -~The-Russtums—went—so—fer—im-their-conterpt—that—the-Seviet- eamenders
'. The Russians waent so far, in their contenpt that the Soviet cammanders in the
Western military districts o_f the USSR, and even in the Moscow military
distriet pegan to designate buildings in the whoie territory of Poland which
— would be taken by their mi'litary_ camands . |

All reports of the General Staff in such instances (and there were
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many more) were accepted by JARUZELSKI without conments while he maintained a

good face in a bad play. He alWays attenpted to rationalize and td justify
the Soviet action. There was, however‘, no doubt that under the influence of
these facts he could conclude that the actual danger to the Polish State's

sepm-ateness'l even with a limited sovereignlty constitutes the USSR.

15. How nationalistie did JARIZELSKI seam to be regarding Poland's future?

The fact that for the first time in the history of the Soviet bloc
acts were cafmitted in 1981 under national slogans and with national forces,
acts which in the past in _other countries had to be executed by ‘the Soviet
Amy, caused not an i‘nsigniflcant confusion in the minds 6! the participants
and observers of the events in Poland and began a wave of speculation about a
possible nationalistic attitude of the main hero of these ha'ppenir_xgs, Gen.
JARUZELSK]1 .

I believe it i_s unnecessary to prove, that in g'enebal, the events in
Poland followed the exact requirements and instruetions of Moscow, though,
perhaps a little later and not exactly in the style then wished and still
being wished for by the Soviet leadership. Oan the personal influence of
JARUZELSKI on such series of developments be an indication of his
nationalistic interest in the future of Poland? Did he demonstrate such
interest in the past? | _

Basing it on the facts fram the period which preceeded the martial
law in Poland, there is no way to find even a mﬁllest trace of JARUZELSKI'S
interest, even on a distant scale,- in directing Poland toward the road of
.Translatorg note. The author avoids the use of "Polish state's

independence", stince he as all other Poles, considers that Poland
is neither independent nor sovereign,
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say even more: all of his, very logical action, indicated that he was
convinced that Poland, in the close alliance with. the USSR could obtain
everything, even achieve independence. In the same vein attempts in opposite .
direction mean betrayal of national interests sinece they could end with a
catastrophy for the Poles, ihcluding the loss of independence.' The slogan
"achjevement of independence", as it is proven in practice, has a clearly"
1imi ted meaning, being in essence reduced to the state authofitiés obtaininé
greaterhnd greater freedam in the organization of national socio-econamic
life. It did not mean returning to the nation {ts sine qua non rights. of
deciding its own fate. .

JARUZELSK] often resorted to the historiecal experiences of the Poles,
though, he treated the national heritage tendentiously to j'usti'fy the actual
policy, especially the élilaﬁce with the USSR. In the historical trends he
cited, h always exposed faults, weaknesses and the falls of Poland, ignoring |
the periods of her greatness and her prime.

He appealed to the patriotic feelings of his subordinates, but he
himself bartered the fate of Pt;land. In the seventies, as the Minister of
National Defense he kept signing allied understandings without any hesit_atiop

even though these further restricted the formal basis of Poland's dependence
on the Soviet Union. JARUZELSKI demonstrated his total lack of interest in
making Poland dependent on the USSR, during the 1979 negotiations and ,un,
acceptance of the Wartime Statute of thé Carbined Armed Forces (ZSZ). Several
states of the Warsaw Pact had serious reservations '-reéarding this

— understanding since the Soviet directives in themselves went so far as to

deprive the national leadership of the Warsaw Pact countries of the rights to
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making about peace and war, excluding even fram the national jurisdietion the
national armed forces transferréd to the Soviet cammand. JARUZELSKI did have
certain reservations in this respect but in the end he concluded that the
interests of the Socialist Cammonwealth had priority over the sovereignity of
small and medium-sized countries, in contenporary times.

In the span of the last decade, JARIJZELSK] evinced, wifhout
ingsinuations, that he is decidely agéinét «the course of becaning' independent
of the USSR which Ramania had chosen to follow. The Ramenian signals, which
I personally tran&nitted fram Romania, and which indicated that they expected
the Poles to take a more independent position at the Warsaw Pact forum,
JARUZELSKI considered these nearly a plot or counter-revolutionary move and
discarded the ideas with contenpt. Wi thoui batting an eye he allowed himself
hwgver, to be dragged in by Russians into a "solidarity” campaign against the
Ramenians at the meetings of the Cammittee of Defense Minis'.ters. Moreover,
he expressed dissatisfaction when the nmbefs of the Polish delegation .
established any kind of closer social contacts with the Romanians, In’ the
reports submitted to the then political and Party leaders of the Polish
Peoples'Republic (GIEREK, JAROSZEWICZ) ﬁe distorted and downgraded the
Ramanian position.

During the crisis in Poland he showed great interest in the Hungarian
model and the height of his dreams, which he underscored rnimy ti_mes, was to
arrive at the level which that country reached in the economic field. |

16. Were same of JARUZELSKI's personal attitudes highly moralistjc

. or puritanical ebout how he or his officers should behave?
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a. Did he insist on highly moral and correct behavior?

JARUZELSKI was & moralist of a sort. On his inl.tiat_ive and with his
decisive partic‘ipation a special document was prepared and codified in the
Polish military and titled: "'lhe Principles of Ethics and Custams for the
Career Personnel of the Pol'ish Peoples’ Armed Forces", i.e., a moral code of
career soldiers. This code pramlgated such ge;neral values, as inter alia,'
love and devqtion to the fatherland, placing of interests of society over
above personal interests, soldiers' honor, personal'dig‘nity, honesty,
truthfullhgss, modesfy, canradeship, equal respect for superiors and sub- ‘
ordinates, respect for uniform and others. Simultaneously with this, the code
cited examples of behavior in variti: social situafions and environments, in
service and at hame, in public places, ete., If I remavrber correctly, there
seem to have been same kind of conmandments for do's and don'ts, as well‘ as
how one should react when sameone else violated these prihciples of ethies.

The principles of ethics were supplemented sunewhat by the ammed
forces manuals about ‘internal and disciplinary mﬁters, formulated with
the personal involvement of JARUZELSKI, as well as the continuing "Program of

| Development of Culture in the Polish Armed Forces". ' ‘

JARIZELSKI was not fanatical about the issue of efhics and morality-
but he would not let anydne who transgresséd get away with it, in the long
run, For instance, in 1968 he appointed Gen. Boleslaw CHOCHA as the Chief of
General Staff of the PAF (Polish Amed Forces) being aware that his appointee |
had an inclination toward alcohol. JARIESKI. tolerated this and limited
himself only to reasoning with him for nearly five years. When G-[ﬁ%,

_— however, disregarded these rebukes in a flagrant nhnner and disgraced himself,

JARUZELSKI removed him fram his job.
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Activities, Colonel Henryk MICHALSKI. JARUZELSKI was aware, in general, about
MICHALSKI'S difficulties in his personal life and was not even disturbed by
the fact that during a nearly decade of their cooperation MIGHALSKI was thrice
divorced. When, however, his fourth wife filed a cmpléint that she was
beaten by him, JARUZELSKI transferred»MI(HAIS(I fram his office to another
position within the MND.

Already in the sixties, JARUZELSKI began a camrpaign in the millitary
against alcoholic abuses., He issued a Series of controversial directives
forbidding the sale and consumption of alcohol on military installations,

. including officers' clubs, and giving of parties during workin_g hours. He
did not, however, implement these directives with an iron hand, It also 4
happened that JARUZELSKI himself fell into the trep of his own directives when
he gave a party of the Officers' Club of the 12th Mechﬁnized-Division to honor
the Party dignitaries of SZCZECIN, An overzelous commander directed that
drinking glasses be filled with watered juice, When JARUZELSK] toasted his
visitors he detemmined that author of this "idea"vulgarized his directive and
fired him on the spot. |

JARUZELSKI did not like banquets .hnd parties, except perhaps the so
called "joint sbldlers'lunches" at which wine was served. Official parties
and banquets with the full choice of aleoholic beverages, took place or'ml'vahen
this was required by the diplaﬁatic pf;itocol. At such time he drank_ himself

but only when toasts were proposed.
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Since the Polish Amed Forces had a non-cash, central supply system,. |
corruption, bribes or graft were marginal occurences which arose very rarély
and on a really small scale. More cammon form of taking personal advantages
was using soldiers' labor in agriculture and forestry, in housing and_
industrial construction, and using military equipment and materiel for
personal purposes. Estimated losses_ fran these instances were not too géeat,
often even laughable.

Only a few cases of bribery were noted, mainly for avoidance of

carpulsory draft. JARUZELSKI reacted rather sharply in all bribery cases and
in all thefts of govefrment property. All pficers involved to wham acc’eptar‘\ce
‘of bribes were proven were sentenced by court-martials to long prison
sentences. In addition, they were reduced in ranks by JAR[EEISKI and
released fran career ﬁ\ilitary service. Similar fate wa§ dealt _to' those who
resorted to theft of military property for personal geins. In the {nstances
of minor gains fram soldiers' labor or personal profiting fram use of military
equipment and material, the prosecutor's investigations were generally dis-
continued and the guilty individuals were punished viﬁ diseiplinary action
most often by being transferred to a lower service post.

It must be stated, in general, that JARIZELSKI did not ereate in this
this area any witch-hunt. There were hundreds of letters about abuses which

were recefved in the offices of the Mlnistry‘ of National Defense. These

included charges agaitist higher-ups mostly in a form of anonymous
correspondence, Each case in's studied individually and based on legal

designation was investigated by either the Chief Military Inspéctorate or by

military prosecu.tor@
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application of a double standard or even a double morality. On thé one hand a
tight rein and harsh penalties for personal appropriations of govemn.envt goods
on a small seale, on the other hand creation in the fashion of the Party-State
elite, of legal loopholes which made it possible for the high-ranking rhilitary
personalities to do these very things legally. Por instance, in the seventies
all the Vicéministérs of National Defense and Chiefs of Oenfral Institutions
were given a temporary or peﬁmnent ownership of newly constructed or
carpletely rchabilitated, at the costs of millions, governmment apartment
buildings and hames. Even JARUZELSKI himself was unable to resist this ‘
bressure and used a villa which was rehabilitated and es‘peci'aAlly adapted for
his residence at the cost of approximately one and half million zlotys. |
¢. How did he deal with discipline problens? ,

JARUZELSKI always preferred to rely on upbringing and preventative
measures against deliquencies. He considered punishment as a last resort a
nd personally resofted to it in exceptional cases, mainly by transferring
offenders to a lower service post. He was certainly very understanding, and in
many instances such affairs ended in only an oral reprimend. He did
favor, however, recognition of people and awarding of prizes in the form of
cammendations, monetary awards, gdverrmental paid furlonghs abroad
medals,etc. _ | ’

One of the examples of JARUZELSKI's conduct in disciplihary matters
was the case of Colonel ANDROSIUK., This officer, despite‘ being quite talented
had in his service many so called ups and downs, i.e., he was quickly pramoted

— and thereafter, as a result of same kind of misdeeds, nbst often because of

drinking, he was being transferred to lower and lower positions. During one
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of his sub‘sequent "ups" before advancing him to a position within the General
Staft‘, he was entrusted with a mission of participating as a secretary of the
Polish delegation at the meeting of the Military Council of Carbined Armed
' Forces (ZSZ) in Budapest. Suddenly, ANDROSIUK disappeared with all the .
documents, inmediately upon landing at the Budapest airport. Since there had
been fears that he might have been kidnapped, large forces of the Hungarian
police as well as border guards and special services zf/several' counfries of
WP were mobilized. He was ultimately found on the next day, totally drunk and
sleeping in the city park with classified documents under his head. Siﬁce the
affair became known outside of the Polish delegation the resulting
embarassment was crucial and JARUZELSKI suffered visibly fram it. He became
convinced that betaining ANIRCSIIK on active duty made no sense because |
nothing seemed to help. Not wanting, however, to deprive him of retirement
pay (whiech took place autamatically in disciplinary cases),_ he recammended.
that he apply for release fram actlive duty for medicﬂ reasons.
Simul taneously, the Medical Commission was advised "fo ‘find" medical .reasons
for his release. Ultimately ANDROSIUK was thus released. After a year, |
however, he concluded that if he were in active duty longer he might have had
a chance to be awarded the Chevalier Cross of Polonia Restituta (this and
higher awards entitled the holder to an additional 25% of his salary).
In his case, his retirement of 8% of his active duty salary, would be
inereased to 100%. He, therefore, submitted his request honestly to
JARUZELSKI who agreed to Mrd him this decoration. |
The example cited above is perhaps too extreme. JARUZELSKI not -
— always allowed himself to be so magnanimous, though in ‘disciplinary matters he

always attarpted, at least in part, to also be the defense attorney of the
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accused to insure that the lﬁtter was not harmed. _

17. What was JARUZELSKI'S life-style? Flashy and 'lavish, modest or
spartan? Did he flaunt his power and'authority? Did he ever abuse the power
of his position? Examples? |

It would be difficult to deseribe JARUZELSKI's lif‘e-style as spartan,
- though cerfainly in comparison with other dignitaries of such level, his style
was rather modest. He had no social or family life. l-le spent nbst of his
time working in his office or participated in a variety of conference of the
Party, government and the military. Occasiona'lly;he would visit military
bases during larger exercises. He began his daily work around 9 a.m.,and
excluding a tm-hourﬁx—n;h period which he generally spent at hame, he worked
until late at night not infrequently until 3 a.m. Before the work ﬁ_e |
participated in all physical exercises, planned for the leading’ cadre of the
MND. He liked to swim in these hours, or to pla& volléyball.. Once in a
while, in the afternoon, in the M\D projection roam, he would view same kind
of a film fran the West which would not be shown in publie movh; theaters. ‘

JARUZELSKI did not flaunt his power and his authority but, though, he
atterpted to be polite and well mannered tdward all, he did make an impression
of a puffed up statue. Except.for the above exanple of his hame which was
supposedly forced on him, I know of no .instance in which he wonﬂgk_bgse the
power of his positioh. ' _

18. How did JARUZELSKI expect his subordinates to treat him? Very
formally and deferentially, or collegially? bid this hold both for formal and
informal settings? ‘

JARUZELSK]1 wanted , before all, that his subordinates would ‘respect
him, but also that he would be liked. He never did, however, allow himself

sn\?a'r
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any familiarity with subordinates nor did he ever try to insinuate himself

into their good graces. He called only a few by their first names which meant
that he considered those his closest friends.‘ Never, hmver; even. if he wore
his pyjemes, did I hear anyone, including his friend SIWICKI to éall him by
~ his first name.. ' _ _

'19. Did his aides, advisors, or subordinate fear JAﬁiJZEISKI ? why qf '
why not? | ' .

. He was feared neérly by all. In nmy opinion, the main reason for
their fear was that he was very d_e‘nanding and. as a}ru‘le he had his own poiht
of view on nearly everything, a view different fran others. He who differ'ed

with him had to take leave fram his post since there was no other choice.

II.
JARUZELSKI's MARRIAGE.
JAHIZE[.SKI was married only once, in either 1957 or 1958, to 'hisi
present wife. He met her at one of the performances of the State Artistic

fno'L nuvinfas
married her supposedly out of love,()')/wmch, however, did not pass the test

enserble "MAZOWSZE", of which she was a.n_"forg r (g_ singer and a dancer). He

of time. 1 know from éertain sburces that in the middle of seventies the

marriage of JARUZELSKI was already "on the rocks". In 1967, his wife had a

friend, a young physician, who provided medical care for their daughter. The

suppopsed reason for the lack of harmony in the marital relations were the

differences in their personalities and JARUZELSKI'S pr'eoccupatiqn with his
— politico-military career. They spent their vacations sepérate‘ly, though

JARUZELSKI was alweys with his daughter. He did not divoree his wife. Before
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the end of the seventies there appeared to be a certain improvement in his

marital life (frequent telephone calls fram the wife to his boffice).

I1/9 KRow and why was JARUZELSKI se‘lected as Chief of the Main
Political Administration in 19607 |

I do not know any behind-the scene machinations. In the early |
sixties there circulated a variety of mutually exclusive .gossips. In the
various versions there was a repetition of the backgrouhd of the then strong
rivalry about the military influence between the so célled "partisants" and
the staff of the regular amy created on the territory and under the aegis
of the USSR. | _

As it is known, after the departure of Soviet Cammander fram the Polish
Armed Forces in 1957, the key military positions were given precisely to the '
"partisants", that is to the people who entered Polish Peoples' Amy from the
Peoples's Army and Peoples' Guard units created by the Polish Workers' ‘Pa'rty
(PPR) on the territory of Poland (the Minister of Defense, Chief of Staff of
the Army, Chief of Staff of the Air Force, chiefs of military intelligence and
counter-intelligence, and others). Certain irrpor'tant posts were even given to
sane pre-war officers, such as the Cammand of the Warsaw Military District,
key power position. The Russians were dissatisfied with this arrangement and
supposedly charged fhat SPYCHALSKI and C!'MJIKA diseriminated againét' the staff
trained and indoctrinated in the USSR. This trend was being reversed sametime
in 1960/1961 in an attempt at the improvement of the Polish-Soviet
relations. One of the signs of this reversal was to be the appointment 6f the
chief of the Main Political Directorate. Moscow's favorite was supposedly

—_ their friend URBANOWICZ while the candidate of the Party is (m) ideologist

Zenon KLISZKO, to whan the chief of the Main Political Directorate was to be




Wilson Center Digital Archive Original Scan

sévm‘

56

subordinated in same fashion, was Grzegorz KORCZYNSKI (, a Major General and at
that time the chief of military Counter-intelligence).

Since the candidacy of MCZ, because of his limited thinking
horizons, even by the camunist standards, was unacceptable to the then
leadership of the PZPR, while samekind of a gesture toward Moscow ivas called
for, SPYCHALSKI suggested and received'approval for the émprqnise ca’rididate
JARUZELSK]! .

It is difficult to say how much truth there is in these stories, and
how much fantasy. One aspect is certain, JARUZELSKI was not in'position to

seek this post. Such attempts never made any sense in the Polish mi'litary. and

if resorted to, often led in the opposite direction. Certainly,
JARUZELSKI's public speeches at the Party meeting and conferences which in new
tenniﬁolbgy propagated the old GIMULKA'S program 6fvhard "labor for the
welfare of the future generations", allov_aed him to bresk the trail for further
military career. I do noi think, however, that JARUZELSKI could even dream
about achieving this posiiipn until it mé offered to him. |
JARUZELSKI had no formal training as a political officer. He did,

however, progressed through all the stebs of the pbliticasl eduéation within
the framework of the programmed po.litical training for militaryA officers and

' generals, He had also supposedly undergone a two-step§ Party training (an
evening Party school at a division, and at a district level).

As the chief of the min_Pdlitical Directorate, JARUZELSKI strictly

implemented the policies of the PZPR in the military. Onme of his achievements

was the abandonment of the use of worn-out and embarassing tenninology

— of propaganda M&?{‘t‘atim in favor of basing it on more

scientific groundwork,
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10. In general, what was his relationship with SPYCHALSKI, with
GOMULKA? |

In my view the relations between JARUZELSKI, GOMULKA and SPYCHALSKI
were not only correct but even very good. SPYCHALSKI held JARUZELSK! in high
esteem and he personally steered JARUZELSKI's career up to the minister's
chair, Gamika was, on the other hand, inpressed by JARUZELSKI's obedience and
respect for him. In the late sixties, just before JARUZELSKI's appointment
the Minister of National Defense, GOMULKA's _ﬁ"ust in JARUZELSKI began to .
vane, The main, if not the only reason, were the expenditures for defense
OOMULKA felt that fhe militafy was receiving a lot but was not nnnagiﬁg its
funds very well., There were certain indications that during the preparationé :
of the PPR armed forces development plans for 1971-75 GOMULKA could suspect
that JARUZELSKI was playing a dual role or that he poorly represented the
interests of Poland in negotiations about the ammament programs with the
Russians. » .

In the summer of 1968 or 1969 I was personally a witness of CDIIJII{A'S'
attack against JARUZELSKI. During the training of the cadre of the Party and
State (secretaries of the Central Camitties of the PUWP and mihisters) which
was conducted by the Camittee for the Defense of State JARUZELSKI delivered
the main paper about the defense of state. When in a part of his speech he
used an argument, often ewployed by the Party's propaganda, that the PPR
spends per a single soldvier considerably less than a camparable NATO country,
QCMULKA rose and in an explosion of a fufy interupted JARUZELSKI's remarks.

He said that the figures cited by JARUZELSK] purposely distorted the qugeting '
— picture of _gxpenditures for armaments in the Polish Peoples' Republic. |
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i t_Repubtre? Continuing, he

stressed that these figures belittle the vast national effort in this

respect. In a nearly half-hour exposition, GOMULKA proved that in reality
the situation is the opposite of what JARLZEISKI wanted to pieture. When

JARUZELSK] attempted to apologize that he was being misunderstood, GCTMULKA
gave him a public reprimand stating that JARUZELSKI's knowledge of econamic's

left a lot to be desired and that he must either pull hinsélf by his boot-

straps in this respect or not attempt to discuss these issues. JARUZELSKI had .
to had eat ecrow and the incident was samehow assuaged during the training of :
the Cammittee for the Defense of the State, though, resentements remined.

11. What was JARUZELSKI role and involvement in the 1970 crisis?

In_the first place I would like to contradict the gossips which
circulated in Poland and abroad, about the supposed restrictions of the
Minister of Defense in his conpetence and even his house arrest by the then
politiéal leadersh‘ip of the Party. In this respect, I must state with full
responsibility that nothing of this sort took placé. On the contrary, it was
précisely JARUZELSKI who at that time directed the use of the military on
countrywide scale, through the then Chief of General Staff of the Polish Amv
Forces, Maj.Gen. Boleslaw CHOCHA. |

I would like to note here that in addition to the maritime area of
the TRI-CITY (GDYNIA, GDANSK, SOPOT) and SZCZECIN where 25,000 troups were
used to disperse the rioting, ‘practicélly all the armed forces were placed
on the state of alert and assigned to direct blocking, law-and-order and ,

—- defense action in all potentially endangered regions of Poland. &r&oidoal-/Q\

Outside of GDYNIA, GDANSK, ELBLAG and SZCZECIN, the military blockade

W’I‘
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WARSAW, KRAKIW, POZNAN, WROCLAW, OLSZTYN and BYDOOSZCZ. Concanmittant with

encarpassed such sities as:

this action, the military tobk over the defense of hundreds of buildi‘ngs which
housed the Party's camittees, and central authorities at provincial and
ci'tiés level, In total, there were 61,000 troops assigned to direct action
along with 1700 tanks, 1750 trucks, 8700 cvars,> aircraft, helicopters and ships a
of the Navy. The ramainder of the armed forces, left in the barracks, formed
reserves which were to be used depending on the further development |
of the situation. |
At the central level there was, for practical purposes., no civilian
crisis staff formed at least from the key members of the Politbureau and the
_ Govermment of the PPR, e
Strategice declslons,{mde personally by GOMULKA. Supposedly, same of
these decisions were}w:r: -withesed by the then Prime Minister CYRANKIEWICZ.
JARUZELSKI personally took part in the general decision about the use of the
military. Detailed plans about the use of amed forces based on JARUZELSKI's
directives, as.well as requests for troops fram the field were prepared,
executed, and up-dated by a special group of officers and generals of the'
General Staff, under the leadership of the then Chief of that body,
Gen. CHOCHA. These plans were being submitted for JARUZELSKI's approval on
the spot.
It is a fact that supposedly on the advice of GOMULKA the cammand of
military in the field was decentralized and military canmanders were directed
7‘0‘ subordinat'&themelves to the plenipotentiaries or local Party secretaries.
— The decision to use weapons against tﬁ§ workers in the meritime area was made

personally by GOMULKA. In the light of the above facts it is difficult
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to blame JARUZELSKI directly for the tragedy in the maritime provinces,
Viewing it, however, 'frun the politico-mwral side, or even fram the binding
laws of the Polish Peopies' Republic, the above facts can at be:;t be
considered as only extenuating circumstances.

12. Can you give background on the 1976 crisis'and JARUZELSKI 's
rumored warning about the military not firing on workers. ‘

I am not aware either of the behind-the-scenes pdlitical discussions
about the use of force in 1976, or of the subsequently spectacular volte face
in the direction of political solutions. Fran the prior access to documents,
gmd from the behavior of JARUZELSKI at that time I can state with full
responsibility that the warning ascribed to JARUZELSKI belongs to the realm of
journalistic fantasy or that it is a "ereature" of unknown origin of special
propaganda, . -

JARUZELSKI was in no position to issue such a warning to the then
political leadership of the Party, and he certainly did not register it with
anyone. JARUZELSKI directed the Polish General Staff, without the least
restrictions, to provide all necessary assistance and support to the security
forces in RADCM and URSUS which was executed ihstantly under his personal
supervision. After 1970, he was very careful not only in the use of weapons
but also in the use of thé military forces in confrontation with the society
which was expressed in a personally prepared memorandum by JAMEE[S{I about .
the December 1970 events. (J‘)z ‘{\N.l okt puarsded he

He considered that for this purpose there are the forégs of militia
and of publie gecurity whieh should bé helped and supported by the military.

These thoroughly thought out ideas were expressed in "Prinéiples of

Cooperation of MND and MIA" a document prepared on his initiative and with
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: ' o
his decisive participation, classified as "Secret of Special Importance,” »
ol | S el
' He wanted to implement these principles dpring the cr‘isis of 1976 '
and did implement them, consequently having in his hands the totality
of power during the planning and introduction of the martial law in Poland.
in 1981,
—
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FOOTNOTES

.No 1, page 18

- 1 have purposely amitted the most important of the "collegial organs"
which was the Political Bureau of the Central Committee of the PUWP with which
JARUZELSKI had an almost religious relationship. I was able ‘to observe_ .these
activities under his chairmanship for nearly two months during the period of .
intensive preparation for introducing martial .law and Shiftiné the whole

center of gravity and power to the Ministry of National Defense.

No. 2. page 18

In principle, the office of the Minister of Defensé, ahd subsequently
the office of the Council of Ministers, were required to submit a separate
folder with a table of contents which provided key tennindlogy, backgrouhd,
parallel exsnples, relevant developments arlld. the other possible data relating

to the issue at hand.

No. 3. page 28

The membership of the Mnistry of Defense Team, aside from the
Minister of National Defense who was the chairman, was carposed of fhe
| viceministers, Chief of the Central Training i)epartment, Chief of the
Department of Cadres, Chief of the Internal Ministry Service (WSW), Chief of
the Party Comnittee of the Central Institution of MD (IOMN). | |
The membership of the MND Military Council, aside fram the Mi'nister,v
- who was the chairman, consists of all merbers of MD Team, all deputies of .

viceministers of M¥D, Chiefs of Central Institutions of MND directly
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subordinated to the Minister of national Defense, chiefs of operational
directorates of Central Institutions of MWD (IOVON) as well as chiefs of

military districts and branches of Armed Forees.

No 4. _ page 31

Until the unification of PPR and PPS (Polish Socialist Party) and
formation of one marxist-leninist type Party, the activities 6f PZPR in the
Polish Armmed Forces were illegal. Since the autum of 1947 in the framework
of the so called "Party struggle for armed forces", under the leadership of
Soviet camnnders- and the political-trainingmapparat” attempts began to create
on a wide scale (in almost all military units) a secret organizational

structhre of PPR.

No §. pege 33

Contrary to the accepfed ‘views (which stem proﬁably from t
he fact that the Chief of the Main Political Directoréte is frequently the
Viee-minister of National Defense), the function of the miéf of MID is not a
government but purely Party position. In accordance with confidential Party
directives guiding the Party's political activities, the Chief of MPD is
subordinated to the Central Conmittee of the PUWP and in this respect, as the
chief of the department of the Central Camittee directs the Party's political
activities in the ammed forces. In this instance, the chief of MPD, even
though he wears a uniform and collects a salary from the military, is for

practical purposes a staff employee of the Party,
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No 6.  page 35

Fictional, though, beloved ramantic character of the Poles created by
the poet Adam MICKIBWNICZ, under the same title, who rea(;hed the highest
dignity by becoming the Master of the Teutonic Order for sole purpose of

destroying the innimical to Poland order.

No 7 page 54

Serving in 1957 in JARUZELSK!'s division in SZCZECIN, I had nearly a
daily report from the wife of my Chief of Staff, who was a telephone operator
on the divisnion's staff. She provided sensational reports of JARIEEISKI.'.S
nightly telephone calls to his girl friend in Skolimow, near Warsaw, to whap
he declared his love plotting his_rmrriage plans. |

.

NO 8  page 60

Relevant documents about this memorandum are on file with this

organization,

No 9 page 61

A copy of this document is on file with this organization.
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